Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes of Auqust 27, 2013:

13-12272  Conduct a Public Hearing to Consider/Discuss/Act on
the Request by Baldwin Associates and Emerald
Cottages Group, L.L.C., on Behalf of Fourteenth Street,
L.P., for Approval of a Request to Rezone Fewer than 6
Acres from "PD" - Planned Development District to "PD"
- Planned Development District, Generally to Modify the
Development Standards, Located Approximately 900
Feet North of Eldorado Parkway and on the East Side of
Alma Road

Ms. Samantha Gleinser, Planner for the City of McKinney, explained the
proposed rezoning request. She stated that Staff recommends denial of the proposed
rezoning request due to non-conformance with the Comprehensive Plan, the City’s
Multi-Family Policy, Section 146-139 (Architectural Standards), and Section 146-132
(Fences, Walls, and Screening Requirements) of the Zoning Ordinance.

Mr. Rob Baldwin, Baldwin Associations, 3904 Elm Street # B, Dallas, TX,
explained the proposed rezoning request. He stated that they plan to develop 34
single-story, fourplexes for seniors over 55 years of age and a common room for the
residents. Mr. Baldwin felt it was a nice transition between the surrounding office uses
and residential properties. He stated that the proposed use did not fit into any current
zoning classification in the Zoning Ordinance. Mr. Baldwin explained that they are
requesting that the site plan and landscape plan be tied down to the zoning on the
property. He felt the proposed fourplexes would be a good transition for seniors that are
ready to get out of their currently residential homes and not quite ready to move into

long term care facilities.



Commission Member Thompson asked about the square footage for the
proposed structures. Mr. Baldwin stated that each one would be about 1,350 sq. ft. He
stated that each unit would have their own garage.

Commission Member Thompson asked if this would be owner occupied units or
rental units. Mr. Baldwin stated that they would be rental units.

Vice-Chairman Franklin asked if the proposed property is adjacent to a nursing
home. Mr. Baldwin said yes.

Commission Member Bush asked why the applicant did not wish to build a
masonry wall on the north and east sides of the property. Mr. Baldwin explained that
the residential neighborhoods to the north and east of this property already have fences
along the property line. He stated that Stonebridge Ranch requires a 10’ separation
between fences and that area would be hard to maintain. Mr. Baldwin stated that they
had increase the landscaping in those areas in-lieu of building additional fencing. He
stated that the neighbors that they had spoken with preferred this option.

Chairman Clark asked Mr. Baldwin if he had spoken with all of the surrounding
residents regarding the fencing. Mr. Baldwin stated that he had sent letters to the
residents within 300’ of the subject property explaining their plans for the property. He
stated that he had also spoken with some of the neighbors on the phone. Mr. Baldwin
stated that Mr. Mark Matise, Emerald Cottages Group, LLC, had met with the
surrounding homeowners associations (HOAs). Mr. Baldwin stated that they received a
letter of support from the Stonebridge Ranch HOA.

Vice-Chairman Franklin asked if it would be an age restricted rental property. Mr.

Baldwin stated yes and that the deed restrictions would address the age requirements.



Commission Member Kochalka had concerns that the property could become a
rental property without age restrictions under the proposed rezoning for the property.
Mr. Quint stated that the proposed “PD” — Planned Development District provisions do
not have any age restrictions. Mr. Baldwin stated that they planned to address the age
requirements in the deed restrictions for the property; however, he was fine with adding
an age restriction as a provision of the proposed rezoning request

Commission Member Kochalka asked the applicant about the level of quality and
if they had any exceptional designs proposed for the property. Mr. Baldwin stated that
they build high quality products. He stated that they would work with Staff during the
design stage, after the rezoning of the property, to make sure that the development met
the City’s requirements.

Commission Member Kochalka stated that he would have liked to have seen
the elevations tied down to the zoning as well as increased landscaping on the project,
since they were asking to change the zoning and removing some of the screening
requirements on the property. Mr. Baldwin felt the proposed landscaping was more
than sufficient.

Commission Member Hilton asked what the proposed rent would be on the units.
Mr. Baldwin stated that Mr. Matise told him it would be around $2,200 — $2,400 per
month.

Chairman Clark asked if they would be providing full maintenance on the
property. Mr. Baldwin said yes.

Chairman Clark stated that he would like to see the elevations tied down to the

zoning on a property. Mr. Brandon Opiela, Planning Manager for the City of McKinney,



stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission can make a recommendation that the
elevations be included with the rezoning of the property. He explained that if the
elevations are not tied down to the zoning on the property that it would not guarantee a
higher level of development. Mr. Opiela stated that if they submit the elevations at a
later time in the process that they would only have to build to the minimum
requirements. Mr. Michael Quint, Director of Planning for the City of McKinney, stated
that the Planning and Zoning Commission would not see the elevations if they were
submitted at a later stage of the process. He stated that it would be a staff approval at
that point.

Commission Member Kochalka expressed concerns over not having the
elevations to show that the applicant plans to build a product with exceptional quality.
Mr. Baldwin distributed photographs of their completed Prestonwood project. Mr. Quint
stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission could tie down the general character
of the photographs to a rezoning request. Chairman Clark asked if Staff would make
the call as to whether or not the general character had been met. Mr. Quint stated that
generally the Director of Planning made that call.

Chairperson Clark opened the public hearing and called for comments.

Mr. Steve Mitchell, 7329 Chadwick Dr., McKinney, TX, expressed concerns over
the proposed multi-family rezoning of the property and what might be built there if this
senior fourplexes project was not built. He stated that he did not want to see a large,
three-story, multi-family apartment complex built there if this project fell through. Mr.
Mitchell felt the wood fence along the property line was old and dilapidated. He stated

that he liked the idea of this project; however, had concerns over them being rental



units. Mr. Mitchell asked if the proposed zoning would allow a multi-family apartment
complex if the proposed senior fourplexes project fell through. Chairman Clark stated
that if the proposed zoning was approved and then they decided to build apartments,
instead of fourplexes, the property would need to be rezoned to allow the apartments to
be built. Mr. Mitchell asked about the front piece of property along Alma Road. Vice-
Chairman Franklin thought that piece of property was zoned “O” — Office District.

Mr. Philip Ruais, 7304 Teakwood Dr. and 7309 Lawndale Ct., McKinney, TX,
stated that 95% of the homeowners association (HOA) was in favor of this project. He
stated that the developer plans to assist in redoing the fencing along the property line.
Mr. Ruais stated that he likes the fact that the developer plans to keep as many trees on
the property as possible. He felt the senior fourplexes would be a good use of the
property.

Mr. Mark Croft, 7312 Teakwood Dr., McKinney, TX, spoke in favor of the project.
He felt it would be a great use for the awkward piece of property.

The Commission voted unanimously on a motion made by Commission Member
Kochalka, seconded by Vice-Chairman Franklin, to close the public hearing, with a vote
of 6-0-0.

Commission Member Kochalka asked how age restrictions could be tied to the
property. Mr. Quint stated that senior multi-family is defined in the Zoning Ordinance
and does require deed restrictions subject to review and approval by the City
Attorney. He felt that if the Planning and Zoning Commission wished to approve the
rezoning request with the special ordinance provisions as listed in the staff report and

add a requirement that only senior multi-family be allowed on the subject property that it



would address some of the Commission Members concerns about the age restrictions
on the property.

Commission Member Bush asked about the recommended special ordinance
provisions. Mr. Quint read the special ordinance previsions that were included in the
staff report aloud. He also added multi-family be limited to senior multi-family as
defined by the Zoning Ordinance and that any building constructed on the subject
property needed to match the architectural character of the Prestonwood photographs
that the applicant distributed to the Planning and Zoning Commission earlier in the
meeting.

The Commission voted unanimously on a motion made by Commission Member
Bush, seconded by Commission Member Thompson, to recommend approval of the
proposed rezoning request per the applicant’s request with the special ordinance
provisions listed in the staff report and with the additional requirements that it be limited
to senior multi-family units as defined by the Zoning Ordinance and that any building
constructed on the subject property needed to match the architectural character of the
Prestonwood photographs that the applicant provided at the meeting, with a vote of 6-0-
0.

Chairman Clark stated that the recommendation of the Planning and Zoning

Commission will be forwarded to the City Council meeting on September 17, 2013.



